
 

 

 

 

Council 
Wednesday 25 September 2002, 7.30 pm 

AGENDA 
 
 Page No 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Councillor Martin Wallace   

 (i) The Council is formally advised of the untimely death of 
Councillor Martin Wallace (Hanworth Ward) on 10 September 
2002. 

 
(ii) To note that a Notice of Vacancy for the Hanworth Ward has 

been published in accordance with Section 87 (2) of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 

 

 

3. To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Council held on 30 July 2002  

3 - 6 

4. Declarations of Interest   

 To receive any declarations of interest in any matters on the 
agenda for the meeting. 
 

 

5. Mayor's Announcements   

6. Executive Report   

 To receive the Leader’s report on the work of the Executive since the 
Council meeting on 30 July 2002. 
 

7 - 12 

7. Budget and Policy Framework   

 1) Youth Justice Plan 
 

a) To receive the Draft Youth Justice Plan  
 
b) The Leader of the Council will move the following 

motion:- 
 
(i) That the Youth Justice Plan be approved subject 

to no significant alterations being made by the 

13 - 92 



Youth Justice Board to the Plan as currently 
drafted. 

 
(ii) That the Executive be authorised to make such 

amendments to the Plan as may be required to 
secure the approval of the Youth Justice Board. 

 

8. Statement of Accounts 2001/02   

 To consider the report of the Director of Corporate Services. 
 

93 - 158 

9. Appointments to Vacancies on Committees and External 
Organisation  

 

 To consider the report of the Director of Corporate Services. 
 

159 - 160 

10. Annual Report of the Tenant's and Leaseholders' Champion   

 To receive the annual report of the Tenants’ and Leaseholders’ 
Champion. 
 

161 - 166 

 



 

COUNCIL 
30 JULY 2002 

(7.30 p.m. – 10.00 p.m.) 
 

 
 

Present: Councillors Adams, Mrs Ballin, Barnard, Beadsley, Bettison, Birch, Mrs 
Birch, Blatchford, Ms Brown, Browne, Edger, Finnie, Glasson, 
Harrison, Miss Haydon, Mrs Hayes, Henfrey, Jones, McCormack, Mrs 
Mattick, Mills, North, Piasecki, Sargeant, Mrs Shillcock, Simonds, 
Thompson, Turrell, Wade, Wallace, Ward and Worrell 

 
Apologies for absence were received from:  

 Councillors Egan, Fawcett, Flood, Grayson, Kendall, McCracken, Mrs 
Pile and Mrs Ryder 

 
THE MAYOR, COUNCILLOR MRS HAYES, IN THE CHAIR 

 
 
33. Minutes  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 26 June 2002 
be approved as a correct record and signed by the Mayor. 
 
 

34. Declarations of Interest 
 
Councillor Barnard declared a personal interest in agenda item 5 (Executive 
Report) as a governor of Garth Hill School. 
 
 

35. Mayor’s Announcements 
 
(i) Mayor’s charity 
 
 The Mayor’s charity for 2002/2003 would be the Paul Bevan Hospice, Kings 

Ride, Ascot. 
 
(ii) Open Air Memorial Service at the Cemetery and Crematorium 
 
 Members were reminded that the open air memorial service would be held at 

Bracknell Cemetery and Crematorium on Sunday 1 September 2002. 
 
(iii) Environment Fair 
 
 The Golden Jubilee Environment Fair was to be held at South Hill Park, 

Bracknell, on Sunday 22 September 2002.   
 
(iv) Civic Service 
 
 Members were invited to attend the annual civic service to be held at the 

Chapel, Wellington College, Crowthorne on Sunday 29 September 2002. 
 
 
 

3

Agenda Item 3



 

(v) Staff Achievements 
 
 The Mayor was very pleased to announce two recent accolades awarded to 

members of staff: 
 
 Mary Temperton, Science teacher at Easthampstead Park School, had been 

named by the Teacher Award Trust as Best Teacher in the south east 
region, for the school community category.  She would now go forward to the 
national finals on 27 October, which would be televised. 

 
 Cecilia Cheale, secretary of Sandy Lane Primary school, had won the Best 

School Secretary of the Year Award in a national competition run by the 
Primary Times Magazine.  She had been nominated by the pupils. 

 
 The Mayor had written to both members of staff on behalf of the Council to 

congratulate them on their achievements. 
 
(vi) Bracknell Town Centre Floral Display 
 
 The Mayor commented on the very attractive display of bedding plants and 

hanging baskets around Bracknell town centre.  Local landowners and 
businesses had contributed significantly to the cost, representing a true 
partnership approach in the town centre.  The mayor particularly thanked the 
staff from the Council’s nursery for their outstanding contribution to the floral 
displays. 

 
 

36. Executive Report 
 
The Leader of the Council reported on the main activities of the Executive since the 
meeting on 26 June 2002.  The Executive had met on two occasions during July 
and a summary of the business transacted was set out in the report.  Particular 
attention was drawn to the following topics. 
 
The Community Plan had been approved in a revised form for further consultation 
over the summer period.  The results of consultation would be considered in the 
Autumn.   
 
Two main items of business during July were presented to the Council as separate 
items on the agenda: 
 
- Town Centre Master Plan 
 
- Housing Strategy and HRA Business Plan 
 
The on-site inspection by the Comprehensive Performance Assessment team had 
taken place from 15 – 26 July.  The inspection team’s draft report would be 
available to the Council for discussion from 8 August 2002.  An informal feed-back 
session had been held and the Leader highlighted the key points raised by the 
inspection team.  The assessment had recognised effective work and excellent 
services and made a number of positive suggestions for the Council to learn from in 
the future.  The final assessment was due to be published in December, combining 
judgements on corporate and individual service performance. 
 
 

4



 

The Leader and relevant Executive Members responded to questions on the 
Executive Report. 
 
 

37. Budget and Policy Framework 
 
The Director of Social Services & Housing, together with the Executive Member for 
Social & Healthcare Services & Housing, presented the draft Housing Strategy and 
Housing Revenue Account Business Plan for consideration and answered 
questions thereon. 
 
On a request for a named vote to be recorded, the voting on the motion was as 
follows:- 
 
For (32) Councillors Adams, Mrs Ballin, Barnard, Beadsley, Bettison, Birch, Mrs 
Birch, Blatchford, Ms Brown, Browne, Edger, Finnie, Glasson, Harrison, Miss 
Haydon, Mrs Hayes, Henfrey, Jones, McCormack, Mrs Mattick, Mills, North, 
Piasecki, Sargeant, Mrs Shillcock, Simonds, Thompson, Turrell, Wade, Wallace, 
Ward and Worrall 
 
Against (0) 
 
It was therefore 
 
RESOLVED on the proposition of Councillor Barnard, seconded by Councillor 
Bettison, that the Housing Strategy 2002-2008 and the Housing Revenue Account 
Business Plan 2002-2003 be adopted.  
 
 

38. Bracknell Town Centre Master Plan 
 
The Chief Executive reported on the Draft Master Plan for the redevelopment of 
Bracknell Town Centre and proposals to progress the project.   
 
RESOLVED on the proposition of Councillor Bettison, seconded by Councillor 
Birch, that  
 
(i) the Bracknell Town Centre Master Plan be approved as supplementary 

planning guidance (SPG). 
 
(ii) the proposed way forward on the Bracknell Town Centre project be 

approved as set out in Appendix I of the Master Plan document. 
 
(iii) the Executive Member for Planning & Transportation be authorised to agree 

minor amendments to the Master Plan prior to its launch in September 2002. 
 
 

39. Supplementary Capital Approval – Easthampstead Park Conference Centre 
 
RESOLVED  that a supplementary capital approval of up to £300,000 be approved 
to refurbish the Whitfield building at Easthampstead Park Conference Centre. 
 
 
 
 

5



 

40. Question Submitted under Procedure Rule 10.2 
 
Notice had been given of the following question by Councillor Beadsley to the 
Executive Member for Leisure Services:- 
 
“As Sandhurst Town Council is having difficulty delivering the land to build a young 
persons’ advice and guidance centre in Sandhurst, what is the Borough Council’s 
present position on this project?”.   
 
In the absence of Councillor McCracken, the Leader advised that the Council had 
been informed by Sandhurst Town Councill that, following public consultation, it 
would not lease to the Borough Council the land on the Sandhurst Memorial Park 
on which it had been intended to construct the young people’s information, advice 
and youth facility.  Consequently, the project known as “Sandhurst Solutions” was 
now at an end.  The money previously earmarked for the project would now be re-
absorbed into Council funds to be made available for new projects. 

 
 

 
 

 
 
MAYOR 

6



(ITEM 6) 

 

COUNCIL 

25 SEPTEMBER 2002 

 

 

EXECUTIVE REPORT 

 

 
The Executive met on 10 September 2002 and has taken Executive decisions on the 
following matters. 

 

 

1 LOCAL PUBLIC SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
1.1 The Council has been previously notified of the work in progress to develop a Local 

Public Services Agreement between the Council and its partner organisations and 
the Government.  The negotiations are now being concluded and will form a basis of 
an agreement which sets out the Authority’s commitment to specific performance 
improvements and the Government’s commitment to the recognition of 
improvements in financial terms and through relaxation of statutory and 
administrative controls.  Thirteen targets are proposed as follows: 

 
 (i) improve secondary school attendance. 
 
 (ii) improve performance of Brakenhale School. 

 
(iii) reduce preventable hospitalisation and ensure reduction in delays in moving 

people of 75 on from hospital. 
 
(iv) improve the educational attainment of children and young people leaving care 

aged 16 and over. 
 
(v) increase the participation of problem drug users in drug treatment 

programmes. 
 
(vi) reduce the rate of re-offending of young offenders. 
 
(vii) reduce vehicle crime. 
 
(viii) increase the percentage of household waste recycled or sent for composting. 
 
(viiii) reduce the number of people killed or seriously injured in Bracknell Forest  

road accidents. 
 
(x) increase the supply of affordable housing. 
 
(xi) increase library usage. 
 
(xii) improve cost effectiveness. 
 
(xiii) reduce repeated domestic violence. 
 

7

Agenda Item 6



In approving the targets described above as the basis of the Local Public Services 
Agreement, the Executive has also agreed that the planned total of Council 
expenditure on this project amounting to £1,589.000 would be included in the 
commitment budget 2002/03-2004/05 and that the “pump priming” grant of £718,000 
would be added to balances and used to finance, in part, the planned total of Council 
expenditure.  Any performance reward grant received by the Council will be used 
initially to finance the remaining Council expenditure not met by the “Pump Priming” 
Grant. 

 
 

2 CUSTOMER CONTACT INITIATIVE  
 
2.1 The Executive has received a progress report on the Customer Contact Initiative, 

and subject to approval by the Council has agreed that a sum of £70,000 should be 
allocated from the restructuring fund to finance the delivery of consultancy services 
in order to make further progress.  The work will be taken forward by a Focus Group 
working with the consultants under the strategic direction of the Customer Contact 
Programme Executive Board. 

 
 

3 SERVICES TO SCHOOLS – BEST VALUE REVIEW 
 
3.1 The Executive has received and endorsed the final report on the Best Value Review 

of Services to Schools and the accompanying improvement plan.  This was a major 
Best Value Review following on from the recommendations of the Ofsted Inspection 
of the LEA and encompassed all the services offered to support the management of 
schools maintained by the Borough Council including Property Services, 
Management Services and Curriculum Services.  The review concluded that the 
majority of services provided through the Borough Council were at least satisfactory 
and the majority were good or better.  An improvement plan has been developed for 
the period 2002-2007 based on 23 specific recommendations arising from the 
Review. 

 

 

4 REALLOCATION OF UNSPENT VOLUNTARY AIDED SCHOOLS CAPITAL 

FUNDING 

 
4.1 Following a reform of liabilities and funding arrangements for premises work at 

voluntary aided schools by the DRES which took effect from 1 April 2002, the Local 
Education Authority is no longer liable for any capital funding at such schools with 
the exception of playing fields and any buildings thereon.  As a result Education 
capital funding of £181,000 is no longer required for a number of projects part 
funded by DfES.  The Executive has agreed to the virement of this sum for the 
following two projects: 

 
 Town Centre Nursery     £37,000 
 New Scotland Hill Primary School – 
 admin/resources extension    £144,000 
 
4.2 Discussions are currently taking place with DfES in relation to extra grant funding for 

the Town Centre Nursery Project and in the event of such funding being made 
available, the amount of £37,000 will be used to construct a new purpose built store 
for PE and dining furniture at Kennel Lane Infant School. 

 

8



 

5 SCHOOL BUDGETS – CHANGE TO IN YEAR RE-CALCULATIONS 
 
5.1 The current funding formulae for schools allocates the majority of initial budgets to 

schools on the basis of forecast number on roll, with funding weighted by age.  
Further funding is allocated for additional pupils with statements of special 
educational needs through Needs Weighted Pupil Units.  Budgets are re-calculated 
and adjustments made on receipt of actually pupil head count data or revisions to 
needs of SEN pupils.  The Executive has been advised that experience in the recent 
past indicates that original budgets generally overstate the number of pupils in 
school for the start of the following spring term and, as a result, the funding is 
returned to the Council’s general reserves under current policies.  This can conflict 
with the policy of setting education expenditure to at least the level of the education 
standard spending assessment.  Accordingly the Executive recommend that the 
funding formula for schools should be amended so that savings which result from a 
reduction in pupil numbers and/or their needs are returned to schools through 
increasing the value of the Age Weighted Pupil Unit or Needs Weighted Pupil Unit as 
appropriate.  However, in the current financial year, the Council has approved a 
budget of £0.125 million above SSA in order to fully fund the teachers’ pay award. 

 

 RECOMMENDATION  

 

 that the funding formula be amended to provide that: 

 

(a) for the financial year 2002/03, if in-year school budget re-calculations 

show a net saving, any amount above £0.125 million be re-distributed to 

schools. 

 

(b) with effect from the financial 2003/04, where in-year school budget re-

calculations show a net saving, all of the funds be re-distributed to 

schools. 
 
 

6 STAFF COLLEGE, BRACKNELL – PLANNING AND DESIGN BRIEF 
 
6.1 The Executive has deferred consideration of the planning and design brief for the 

Staff College at Bracknell to enable further discussions with the landowner.  It is 
anticipated that the brief will now be considered by the Executive at its October 
meeting. 

 
 

7 DRAFT REGIONAL TRANSPORT STATEGY 
 
7.1 South East England Regional Assembly (SEERA) has published a draft Regional 

Transport Strategy covering the period until 2016.  The draft strategy acknowledges 
the problems faced by the South East; specifically the key role transport plays in 
maintaining the economic strength of the region and contains a vision, key 
proposals, objectives and policies in support of the vision. 

 
7.2 In general terms the objectives are supported by the Executive but there are specific 

issues of great significance to Bracknell Forest and the Executive has approved the 
basis of a response on behalf of the Borough Council specifically targeted at such 
issues. 

  

9



7.3 In addition the Association of Councils of the Thames Valley and Region will be 
submitting a joint response on behalf of all Thames Valley Authorities and the 
Borough Council will have an input into that joint response. 

 
 

8 ANNUAL LIBRARY PLAN 
 
8.1 All library authorities are required to produce an Annual Library Plan which is a 

strategic document intended to shape the future of the service within the Authority.  
This document forms part of the Council’s Policy Framework and a consultation draft 
has now been published on behalf of the Executive.  Following the outcome of 
consultation, a revised draft will be brought to the October meeting of the Council. 

 
 

9 BRACKNELL FOREST VOLUNTARY SECTOR COMPACT 
 
9.1 The Executive has previously adopted a series of codes of good practice drawn up 

by the Voluntary Sector Compact which aims to assist voluntary and community 
organisations in the Borough to develop in specific areas.  The Executive has now 
endorsed the fourth code of good practice which covers development issues.  This 
code completes the initial four areas of focus for Voluntary Sector Compact and 
future work will involve the creation of action plans and identifying the potential for 
other codes in the future. 

 
 

10  YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN 
 
10.1 Under Section 40 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 it is the duty of each local 

authority to formulate a Youth Justice Plan setting out how Youth Offending Services 
in their area are to be provided.  This involves several departments within the local 
authority and other agencies including Thames Valley Police, Berkshire Probation 
Service and Bracknell Forest Primary Care Trust.  The plan has to be submitted to 
and approved by the Youth Justice Board and forms part of the Council’s policy 
framework.  Work was proceeding by the Youth Offending Teams in Bracknell 
Forest and Windsor and Maidenhead to consider a potential merger but it has 
become clear more recently that the Youth Justice Board are undertaking a review of 
Youth Offending Teams and would be issuing guidance later in the year on the 
future structure, function and funding arrangements.  Accordingly although the two 
teams are continuing joint working at an operational level, further work on the 
potential merger has been held over until such guidance has become available.  The 
Youth Justice Business Plan for 2002/03 is enclosed with this agenda for approval by 
the Council at agenda item 7. 

 

 

11. LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN POLICY AND PROCEDURES 
 
11.1 The Executive has approved detailed policies and procedures relating to the way in 

which the Council will take care of children in public care and which provide detailed 
guidance on the status and procedures to approve carers.  The policy and procedure 
have been developed on a series of key principles as follows: 

 
(i) to promote the private placement of children with relatives and friends as an 

alternative to them being looked after by the authority, where appropriate. 
 

10



(ii) to promote the placement of looked after children with relatives and friends 
rather than stranger carers, as far as practical and consistent with their 
welfare. 

 
(iii) to promote the early discharge of children from the looked after system to the 

care of relatives and friends, so as long as this consistent with their welfare. 
 
(iv) there should be no financial disincentive for a child to be looked after outside 

of the care system. 
 
(v) there needs to be clarity on the decision making and approval process by 

which a child becomes looked after and the status of the carer. 
 

11.2 The revised policy and procedure are under-pinned by separate policies and 
 procedures dealing with: 

 
(a) kinship care 
 
(b) residence order allowances 

 
 

12 COMMUNITY TRANSPORT TENDER  
 
12.1 The Executive has previously reported its intention to move towards a single contract 

for the provision of community transport and minibus services in the Borough.  This 
would replace the adhoc system of Voluntary Sector Grants which have previously 
been awarded at the beginning of each calendar year.  A service specification has 
been developed in conjunction with the community transport operators, and following 
the issue of tender documents, one valid tender was received from Keep Mobile and 
this has been accepted by the Executive from 1 October 2002.  The assessed 
annual revenue cost is £103,640. 

 
 

13 CAR PARK MANAGEMENT CONTRACT 
 
13.1 The Council’s Car Park Management Control runs to the end of February 2003.  The 

Executive has now approved a short list of companies to be invited to tender for the 
new contract to run 1 March 2003. 

 
 

14 TOWN CENTRE RE-DEVELOPMENT – MEMBER DECISION MAKING PROCESS 
 
14.1 The Council has two distinct roles in relation to re-development of Bracknell Town 

Centre namely that of local planning authority and as a significant owner of land in 
the Town Centre.  It is important that the Council does not and is seen not to allow 
the exercise of its responsibilities as local planning authority to be influenced by its 
interest as a landowner.  In order to achieve the separation of these interests and to 
preserve cross party for the project, the Leader has indicated he now proposes to 
delegate his responsibilities for the management maintenance, improvement, 
development and re-development of Bracknell Town Centre to a committee of the 
Executive and that the Leader of the Labour Party will be invited to serve on the 
committee as a co-opted non-voting member.  The Councillors appointed to this 
committee will not participate in the Council’s duties as a planning authority.  It 
should also be noted that members of the Select Committee on Corporate and 

11



Resource Issues who wish to participate in relevant planning decisions will be 
debarred from participating in any scrutiny of decisions taken by the Executive 
Committee. 

 
 

15 LOOKING AHEAD 
 
15.1 The Executive is now entering into the initial planning stages for next year’s policy 

objectives, service delivery objectives and budget.  This will dominate the work of 
Executive Members through the proposed budget working groups.  The Executive 
will concentrate on drawing up proposals throughout October and November 2002 
and intends to publish its draft proposals following the procedure laid down in the 
Council’s constitution in mid December.   

 
15.2 Other important topics in the current work programme include the Freedom of 

Information Publication Scheme, Corporate Human Resource Strategy and the ICT 
Strategy and Three-Year Plan.  In addition it is hoped that the Executive will have 
received the outcome of the Comprehensive Performance Assessment process. 

 
15.3 The Council is reminded that the Forward Plan for the Executive is published on the 

first of each month. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12



13

Agenda Item 7



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



This page is intentionally left blank



Bracknell Forest Youth Offending Team Business Plan. 
 

Glossary of Terms. 
 
 

 Assett: Youth Justice Board standard Assessment framework to assess 
Criminological factors in children and young people. 13 Headings are covered in 
the assessment e.g. use of drinks and drugs and a final total score for the whole 
assessment of 1 to 49 is given to the young person.  The higher the higher the 
score the more chance a young person may re-offend. This assessment is done 
when the YOT start to work with a young person and is then re-done every 3 
months with the intention that the work the YOT are doing with the young person 
is bringing the score down. 

 

 PSR, SSR: Pre-Sentence Report and Specific Sentence Report. 
Both are reports done when a young person is being sentenced in Court. 
The Pre-sentence Report is a very detailed report of 8 or more pages which gives 
a lot of detail regarding the young person being sentenced to the Magistrates and 
addresses all of the sentencing options open to the Court. A PSR will also contain 
a statement from the victim regarding how the crime impacted on them. The 
Specific Sentence is less detailed and is only 3 to 5 pages long and can only be 
used when the magistrates have specifically asked for one of two specific 
sentences, either a Reparation Order or an Action Plan Order. 
 

 RJ [Restorative Justice]: Involves a young person either meeting with their victim    
      or doing reparative work for the victim e.g. cleaning graffiti. Actual example of    
      Direct Reparation is a young person cleaning graffiti for three Saturdays in a row,  
      3.5 hours a time for an act of vandalism on a train. An example of Indirect 
      Reparation is a young person spending 12 hours over 3 days gardening at an 
      Peoples home [young people are always supervised by YOT staff or volunteers                
      On these activities]. 
 

 Community Payback: Standing Community Reparation Schemes set up by the 
YOT where young people can go and do Indirect reparation work to the 
Community. Some of the schemes Bracknell YOT have set up are working on the  
Community Farm, Cleaning up and painting etc in Youth Clubs and gardening at 
an old peoples home.  

 

 LASU: Local Authority Secure Unit. A secure children’s home. Will typically have 
about 8 to 24 children and young people in residence. 

 

 STC: Secure training Centre: Privately run secure training and education centres. 
Will typically have about 60 children and young people in residence. 

 

 YOI: Young Offenders Institution. Prison Service Accommodation for young 
people. Very similar to a prison. Will have about 360 Young People in residence, 

 

Sentences of the Court.  
 

 Referral Order: An Order that has to be made on any young person who 
appears before the Court for the first time if they have pleaded guilty and if 
custody is not being considered. Orders can be made from between 3 months 

89



and 12 months. The young person is sentenced by the Court and then goes 
before a panel made up of two [trained] volunteers from the community and a 
YOT worker. This panel then works out a contract with the young people re 
putting right the harm caused e.g. doing reparative activity either for the victim 
directly or the community. Victims can attend the panels and put their views to the 
panel, particularly regarding how the crime affected them. 

 

 Reparation Order: This order is a low tariff Order. Involves a maximum of 24 
hours YOT involvement over a 3 month period. As the title of the Order suggests 
the YOT involvement is mainly based around getting the young person to do 
Direct or Indirect Reparation work to the Victim or to the Community. 

 

 Attendance Centre Order [AC]: An Order where by a young person has to 
attend a session in a centre [in Slough] for 2 hours every other week for between 
6 to 12 sessions if they are under 16 and up to 18 sessions if they are over 16. 

 

 Action Plan Order: An intensive Order that has to be completed in three months. 
Minimum time is 24 hours with no maximum. Can have Attendance centre as part 
of the plan. Example, a plan may contain 12 hours AC, 16 hours reparation and 
ten hours individual work at the YOT, making 38 hours of work / contact in three 
months. 

 

 Electronic Monitoring Order [a tag]: Curfew monitored using an electronic 
monitoring device [a tag] e.g. young person has to be at home from 7 PM to 8 
AM. Maximum length of tag is 3 months for those between 12 and 16 and 6 
months for those over 16.  

 

 Supervision Order: An Order that can be set for between 6 months and 3 years. 
[different from a supervision Order under the Children Act which is about 
supervising the welfare of a child rather than making sure they are not offending]. 

 

 Community Rehabilitation Order [CRO]: The new name for an old style 
Probation Order. A community supervision sentence only available for people age 
16 and over. 

 

 Community Punishment Order [CPO]: New name for an old style Community 
Service Order. For people aged 16 and over. People do from 40 to 240 hours 
work in the community. These Orders are all managed by the Probation Service. 

 

 Community Punishment and Rehabilitation Order. Is a combination of a CRO 
and a CPO. Replaces an old style Combination Order. 

 

 Drug Treatment and Testing Order [DTTO]: Used for people whose offending 
is motivated by their Drug Addiction. These Orders require people age 16 and 
over to work with drug rehabilitation services and to be regularly monitored and 
drug tested by the Services. These Orders are held by the Probation Service. 

 

 Detention and Training Order [DTO]: A custodial sentence for children and 
young people aged from 12 to 16 whereby the first half of the sentence is served 
in a custodial establishment either an STC, LASU or a YOI and the second half is 
served on licence [monitored by the YOT] in the community. Sentence can be 
from 4 to 24 months in length. Most common form of custodial sentence for 
young people. 

 

90



 Section 91 / 92 [Powers of the court Sentencing Act 2000]: Replaced old style 
S53 [1933 Children and Young Person Act]. A custodial sentence for any child or 
young person over 10 who has committed a crime that if they were an adult could 
mean that they could receive a sentence of 14 years or more in Prison e.g. 
Grievous Bodily Harm with Intent. 

 
 
 
 
 

91



This page is intentionally left blank



(ITEM 8) 

 

COUNCIL 

25 SEPTEMBER 2002 

 

 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2001/02 

(Director of Corporate Services - Finance) 

 

 

1 PURPOSE OF DECISION 

 
1.1 The Council’s Statement of Accounts must be approved by a resolution of the 

Council within six months of the period to which they relate.  The Accounts are then 
subject to audit by the Council’s external auditors, KPMG.  This report presents the 
Council’s draft Statement of Accounts for 2001/02, subject to audit, and outlines the 
provisions and reserves included with them.  This is a standard report that was 
formerly presented to the Management and Resources Sub-Committee in 
September each year. 

 
 

2 RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

2.1 That the Statement of Accounts 2001/02 (attached) be approved; 

 

2.2 That the out-turn expenditure for the year be noted and the provisions 

(£0.263m per section 4.2) and earmarked balances (£5.273m per section 4.3) be 

approved; 

 

2.3 That the use of £0.070m from the Structural Changes Earmarked Reserve be 

approved for the Customer Contact Initiative (paragraph 4.3.4), as requested by 

the Executive. 

 

 

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
3.1 This is a standard report that was formerly presented to the Management and 

Resources Sub-Committee in September each year.  The agreement of full Council 
is required to the proposal to release funds from the Structural Changes Earmarked 
Reserve for consultants fees. 

 
 

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 Aside from the establishment of new provisions and earmarked reserves, the 

Statement of Accounts is a factual document detailing the Council’s income and 
expenditure in 2001/02 and the balance sheet at 31 march 2002.  No specific funds 
have been established for the Customer Contact initiative. 

 

93

Agenda Item 8



 

5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 

5.1 Medium-Term Financial Strategy 
 
5.1.1 A key Council objective is to achieve a “soft landing” in balancing its expenditure to 

the level of annually generated resources in the medium-term.  An important factor in 
achieving this is the careful and planned use of balances to support the revenue 
budget over the next three to four years.  To facilitate this, the Council’s policy in 
recent years has been to maximise the opportunities to increase revenue balances at 
the expense of capital resources wherever possible.  Since 1998, this approach has 
added £7m to general revenue balances, providing greater financial flexibility, as 
revenue balances can be used to fund either revenue or capital expenditure whereas 
capital resources can only be used to fund capital expenditure.  

 

5.2 Out-turn Expenditure 2001/02 
 
5.2.1 Provisional out-turn expenditure was reported to the Executive on 18 June as 

£88.712m for the General Fund and £0.243m for the Housing Revenue Account.  
Details of the actual expenditure compared with the projected out-turn are shown in 
Table 1.  For comparative purposes, and in accordance with common accounting 
practice, the original projections have been adjusted to include final capital charges, 
corporate recharges and deferred charges, which have a nil effect overall. 

 
 Table 1: Comparison of Actual and Projected Out-turn Expenditure 2001/02 
 

 Projected 

Out-turn 

Projected 

Out-turn 

Restated 

Actual 

Out-

turn 

Transfers 

to 

Earmarked 

Reserves 

Other 

Changes 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Corporate 6,529 7,425 7,300 -194 69 
Education 60,180 58,310 57,725 -527 -58 
Environment 18,405 19,325 19,343 0 18 
Leisure 8,773 8,966 8,997 0 31 
Social Services & Housing 23,165 26,659 26,879 0 220 
Non-Departmental Budgets  -28,340 -31,973 -32,661 0 -688 

General Fund Total 88,712 88,712 87,583 -721 -408 

Housing Revenue Account 243 243 255 0 12 

Total Net Expenditure 88,955 88,955 87,838 -721 -396 

5.2.2 Actual out-turn expenditure was not significantly different from the projected figures 
for most services, with the greatest changes relating to Non-Departmental budgets in 
order to continue with the policy of adding to balances where possible.  The most 
significant reasons for the variations are set out below.  Out-turn expenditure for the 
Housing Revenue Account was very close to the level predicted. 

5.2.3 The most significant change since the provisional out-turn was reported relates to a 
change of financing, to maximise revenue balances at the expense of capital 
resources.  When setting the 2001/02 budget, the Council elected to fund £0.5m of 
repairs and maintenance in the Housing Revenue Account from the Major Repairs 
Allowance.  This meant that the Council was not able to make full use of the 
transitional relief to the General Fund through the negative housing subsidy.  It was 

94



acknowledged at that stage that this approach would need to be re-evaluated during 
the year when the final out-turn was known.  At the end of the financial year, it was 
decided to fund the repairs and maintenance expenditure from capital receipts, 
rather than from the Major Repairs Allowance.  This allows full use to be made of the 
transitional arrangements to increase the negative housing subsidy transfer to the 
General Fund by £0.5m, with no impact on the Housing Revenue Account.  The 
2002/03 budget already assumes that full use will be made of the transitional 
arrangements, and hence this technical change in financing in 2001/02 represents a 
one-off opportunity. 

 

5.2.4 Other changes since the provisional out-turn were as follows: 

 Corporate 

 Underspend on insurance excesses (-£0.194m) which is transferred to the 
Insurance Fund 

 Increase in provision for bad or doubtful debts that can not be apportioned to 
individual services (£0.081m) 

 Education 

 Underspend of match funding for Standards Fund grants, which can be spent 
until the end of August (-£0.253m).  This sum has been carried forward into 
2002/03 to match the grant allocation.  

 Underspend on school budgets (-£0.274m) which is automatically transferred to 
school reserves 

 Social Services and Housing 

 Additional investment interest (£0.108m) was achieved through an agreement 
with Health for advance payment of section 28A grant, however this should 
properly be shown against investment income in non-departmental budgets in 
the final out-turn.  Consequently there is a reduction in income of this amount 
for Social Services and Housing matched by an increase in investment income 
in non-departmental budgets, compared with the provisional out-turn. 

 Deficit on the Building Maintenance contract due to the approved one-off 
redundancy payments (£0.111m) involved in restructuring Bracknell Forest 
Services.  This is being funded from within the overall General Fund budget, 
rather than from the Structural Changes Earmarked Reserve, as the out-turn 
position gives sufficient flexibility to allow this. 

Non-Departmental Budgets 

 Transfer of investment income from Social Services and Housing, as described 
above (-£0.108m) 

 Additional investment income (-£0.057m) 

 

5.3 Provisions 

5.3.1 The Council’s balances contain specific provisions for known liabilities where the 
timing or amount of the liability is uncertain.  These are considered each year as part 
of the budget cycle to ensure adequacy and need, and are again reviewed at the 
year end, in considering the annual accounts. 

95



5.3.2 In previous years there existed a number of such provisions, however changes in 
accounting rules now mean that these have largely been re-classified as Earmarked 
Reserves.  The only provision that remains in the Council’s accounts is for the 
maintenance of section 106 land, which totals £0.263m.  This represents cash 
transferred to the Council when it takes responsibility for a package of land, and is 
designed to cover the maintenance costs for a period of normally five years.  

 

5.4 Revenue Balances 

5.4.1 These are the reserves of the authority at 31 March 2002 consisting of Earmarked 
Reserves and the General Reserve.   

 Earmarked Reserves 

5.4.2 Earmarked Reserves are sums of money which have been set aside for specific 
items of expenditure.  These are excluded from general balances available to 
support revenue or capital expenditure.  Earmarked Reserves totalling £5.273m, a 
decrease of £0.144m on last year’s figure, are proposed and are detailed in Table 2.  

 
 Table 2: Earmarked Reserves 
 

 31 March 
2002 

 £’000 
Insurance Fund 849 
Development Claims 500 
Regeneration of Bracknell Town Centre 369 
Budget Carry Forwards 253 
Exceptional environmental conditions 500 
Structural Changes 1,000 
Corporate Innovations 250 
School Reserves 1,311 
Education Library Service 109 
Repairs Small Business Units 132 

Earmarked Balances 5,273 
 
5.4.3 The only new reserve proposed is for Corporate Innovations (£0.250m).  A report to 

the Executive on 10 September on the Customer Contact Initiative highlighted the 
need for funding of £0.070m for preparatory consultancy work to progress this major 
project, which is likely to result in significant changes in staffing structures in the 
future.  The use of the Structural Changes Earmarked Reserve established by the 
Strategy and Policy Committee in September 2000 is limited to redundancy or other 
one-off severance costs incurred as a consequence of new staffing arrangements.  
Clearly, however, other major initiatives are also likely to require additional costs in 
the preparatory and implementation phases.  To fund such costs, it is proposed to 
transfer £0.250m from the Structural Changes Earmarked Reserve to establish a 
new reserve for Corporate Innovations, to be controlled by the Executive.  This can 
be used to pump prime projects impacting on more than one department that are 
likely to result in significant structural changes in the future. 

 
5.4.4 Pending the external audit of the accounts and the formal establishment of the 

Corporate Innovations reserve, Council is requested to relax the rules relating to the 
Structural Changes Earmarked Reserve to allow the sum of £0.070m needed in the 
immediate future for the Customer Contact Initiative to be funded from this source.    

96



 
 General Revenue Reserve 
 
5.4.5 When the provisional out-turn was reported to the Executive in June, General Fund 

revenue balances were predicted to be £11.6m at 31 March 2002 and Housing 
Revenue Account balances were estimated at £0.134m.  As a result of the technical 
adjustments and variations outlined in the report, the actual balances shown in the 
attached Statement of Accounts are £12.555m and £0.123m respectively.   

 
5.4.6 Subject to the Council’s approval to the proposals set out above, the movement in 

General Fund revenue balances during 2001/02 can be summarised as follows. 
 
 Table 3: Movement in General Revenue Balances 
 

 £m 

Actual balances @ 31/3/2001 13.7 

Budgeted use of balances in 2001/02 -2.1 

Full use of transitional arrangements under Resource 
Accounting 

 
0.5 

Other revenue budget underspends 0.3 

Balances transferred from BCC 0.1 

Net movements in earmarked balances 0.1 

General Revenue Balances @ 31/3/2002 12.6 

 
5.4.7 In setting the 2002/03 budget, Members approved the use of £2.7m from general 

revenue reserves.  Against this, a further £0.3m has been received from Reading 
Borough Council from the former County Council’s balances since 31 March.  
General reserves are therefore estimated to be £10.2m by 31 March 2003, subject to 
the 2002/03 outturn.  Of this, £6.2m is available to support revenue expenditure, with 
£4m being the minimum prudent level required.  This is £1.3m higher than previously 
estimated (the difference being explained in table 3 and by the additional sum 
received from Reading), and will assist in achieving a “soft landing” in the medium-
term.  

 
5.4.8 The level of reserves on the Housing Revenue Account, being below the minimum 

prudent level of £0.3m, is a matter of some concern. It is known that this was 
adversely affected by the low level of investment income in 2001/02, which is 
expected to be at least partially recovered in the current year.  However, it will be 
important to give careful consideration to this matter in determining the 2002/03 
budget proposals for the Housing Revenue Account. 

 

5.5 Audit of Accounts 
 

5.5.1 The Council’s external auditors, KPMG, are currently undertaking their audit of the 
2001/02 accounts.  Any significant changes that are required to be made to the 
accounts resulting from the audit will be reported to the Council at a future meeting. 

 

97



 

6 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS 
 
 Borough Solicitor 
 
6.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 1996 require the Council to approve accounts 

from 1996/97 onwards. 
 
 Borough Finance Officer 
 
6.2 The Statement of Accounts is the published document including the balance sheet, 

revenue accounts, cash flow statement together with notes which expand and 
explain the information in these statements. 

 
 Access Implications 
 
6.3 None. 
 
 
Background Papers 
Draft Statement of Accounts 2001/02 
“Customer Contact Initiative” report to Executive 10 September 2002 
 
Contact for further information 
Chris Herbert – 01344 355694 
Chris.herbert@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
Stuart McKellar – 01344 352179 
Stuart.mckellar@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
 
Doc. Ref 
G:\Accounting Services\Statutory Accounts\2001-2002\25 Sept 02 Statement of Accounts.doc 

 

98

mailto:Chris.herbert@bracknell-forest.gov.uk
mailto:Stuart.mckellar@bracknell-forest.gov.uk


99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



(ITEM 9) 

 

COUNCIL 

25 SEPTEMBER 2002 

 

 

APPOINTMENTS TO VACANCIES ON  

COMMITTEES AND EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 

(Director of Corporate Services) 

 

 

1 PURPOSE OF DECISION 

 
1.1 A number of vacancies have arisen on Committees and external organisations 

following the death of Councillor Wallace.  The vacant committee seats are 
allocated to the Conservative Group and should be filled on their nomination.  The 
Council can appoint to the vacancies on outside bodies at its discretion.  

 
 

2 RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

2.1 The Council is requested to confirm any appointments proposed by the 

Conservative Group in respect of the following vacancies on committees (one 

seat in each instance):- 

 

Select Committee on Lifelong Learning 

Education Governor Selection Committee 

Employment Committee 

Teachers’ Joint Consultative Committee 

 

Substitute Appointments: 

 

Co-ordination Select Committee 

Planning & Highways Committee 

 

2.2 The Council is requested to consider appointments to the following vacancies 

on external organisations (one seat in each instance): 

 

South Hill Park Trust Board (as a trustee until 2003) 

Hanworth Community Association 

Bracknell and District Victim Support Scheme 

 

 

3 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
3.1 Officers are required to report to the Council when vacancies arise on committees 

and external organisations.  The current vacancies are set out in section 2 above 
and the Council is invited to consider any nominations put forward for these 
vacancies.  In the case of the committee vacancies, these seats have been 
allocated by the Council to the Conservative Group and appointments should be 
made in accordance with the wishes of that Group. 

 
 
 Access Implications 
 
4.1 None. 

159

Agenda Item 9



 
 
Background Papers 
None 
 
Contact for further information 
Peter Driver – 01344 352260 
peter.driver@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
 
Doc. Ref 
Council 25-09-02. vacancies 

160



(ITEM 10) 
 

TENANT AND LEASEHOLDERS CHAMPION’S BRIEF FOR   
COUNCIL MEMBERS - 25 SEPTEMBER 2002 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 

My appointment as Champion was approved at the Council Meeting on 1 May 2001 
following which I have become a member, by invitation, of the Tenant, Leaseholder 
and Sheltered Scheme Residents Association (SSRA) committees.  I have attended 
most formal meetings since my appointment.  Additional to these I attend as many 
Resident Association meetings as I can; these are notified quarterly in the Tenants 
and Leaseholders Newsletter. 

 
2. ROLE AND FUNCTION 
 

My role and function is: 
 
‘ To act as a positive focus for the local community at elected member level in 
respect of the relevant section of the community or range of activities 
designated by the Council so as to ensure that full consideration is given to 
the impact of Council activities and decisions upon the section of the 
community or range of activities’ 
(Constitution – Article 10. Paragraph 10.03) 
 
In this role I am authorised to: 
 
‘Appoint (at my own discretion) a Panel to support the work where this would 
not over lap with other established liaison or consultative mechanisms’ 
(Constitution – Article 10. Paragraph 10.05) 

 
3. PANELS AND MEETINGS 

 
a. Apart from the meetings in residential areas, where attendance is generally 

poor, Tenant and Leaseholder Panel (T&L) meetings are very well attended 
and the enthusiasm and commitment of the members is excellent.   Issues 
have been discussed in a sensible and mature way and where comments 
have been asked for the response has shown a thorough grasp of the matters 
in hand. 

 
b. Regrettably, so far some areas such as North Ascot, Chavey Down, 

Winkfield, Binfield, Warfield, Crown Wood, Crowthorne, Sandhurst and 
Owlsmoor are not represented on the T&L panel.  This is something to be 
addressed once the new Tenants Participation officer has settled in after 
being recently recruited. 

 
c. Leaseholders (2) and an SSRA member represent their respective 

associations on the T&L Panel that nominates one member to sit on the 
Social Services and Housing Select Committee. This provision gives the 
Panel a transparent overview and input in all matters relating to Council 
property,  plus an insight into the wider social issues that exist in the Borough 

 
d. As a member of the Housing Strategy and Capital Projects and Maintenance 

Panels I am able to keep in touch with the maintenance and repair of the 
Council’s property and the major projects being undertaken. 

161

Agenda Item 10



 
 

2. CHAMPION’S PANEL 
 

I have chosen not to appoint a Champion’s Panel yet for the following reasons: 
 
a. Existing Panels are properly constituted and I am a member of all of them.  

The Labour Group also has a representative on the main T&L Panel and the 
Executive member for Social Services and Housing attends meetings 
regularly. 

   
b. The Pensions Champion attends the SSRA meetings and makes a very 

positive contribution to discussions in that group. 
 

c. I believe this representation to be sufficient in the circumstances and to create 
an additional ‘member panel’ to those already in existence would not achieve 
much in my opinion.  However, I reserve the right to keep the matter under 
review. 
 

3. MISCELLANEOUS ISSUES 
 

Issues dealt with have been wide ranging from those of purely local concern to others 
of greater social relevance.   The following are a sample of matters that have either 
been dealt with already or are ongoing. 
 
a. Annual Rent Consultation 
 

The last round of Tenants consultation on rent increases for the FY 2002-
2003 was carried out to the following timetable, which is now the blueprint for 
the future. 
 
Tenants Panel meeting November  
Further Tenants meetings December 
Survey Tenants  January for 3 weeks 
Survey closes   End January 
Analysis    
Initial results available February 
Final report   Early February 
Executive briefing  Mid February 
Council   Late February 
Letters to tenants  Early March 
Increase effective from 1 April 
 
5.6% was the agreed rent increase this year before which 35% of tenants had 
registered their preferences.  This high return is considered to be an excellent 
response. 

 
 

b. Insurance of household contents 
 

Following the flooding in parts of the Borough in the year 2000 we discovered 
many Council tenants had no household insurance of any description.   A 
scheme to give tenants and leaseholders insurance cover at reasonable rates 
was developed following negotiations with four providers.  At a joint meeting 
with tenants and leaseholder representatives on 19 Jul 01 Lloyd Thompson 

162



was chosen as the preferred provider.   Subsequently all tenants, and 
leaseholders, have been appraised of the options now open to them and I 
understand the scheme has been moderately successful.   My information is 
that some residents affected by recent flash flooding in the Borough benefited 
from taking advantage of this insurance scheme. 
 

c. NTL AND FUTURE AERIAL PROVISION 
 

The transfer of TV reception and other electronic facilities to NTL has not 
been an unqualified success in some areas, especially flats. Although, it is fair 
to say that some residents have been satisfied with the facilities provided.  
The financial difficulties experienced by NTL and its subsequent re-
organisation has prevented good communications between our officers and 
the company’s management and this has been very frustrating at times. 
 
As notified in the last Tenants and Leaseholders Newsletter the Council is 
now in the process of brokering a deal with suppliers to install and maintain a 
communal system for each block of flats across this Borough, when NTL 
finally withdraw their services.  Occupants of flats don’t have the same 
options as house dwellers have to erect aerials on their properties and we 
want a supplier who will provide a sound service at a fair and reasonable cost 
to the people affected by change. 
 
The T&L Panel, who will interview all prospective applicants, will choose the 
supplier to whom the ultimate contract will be awarded.   To date five firms 
have shown an interest in taking on this commitment. 
 
Any new service will allow terrestrial and satellite stations to be accessed and 
it will be a priority of the Council to ensure a fair pricing structure is arranged 
prior to any contracts being signed. This will include a clause stating that 
annual increases in the service charge will be limited to the prevailing inflation 
rate. 
 
Once a satisfactory conclusion is reached the final system will be operated 
independently from further Council involvement. 
 

d. New political arrangements 
 

The T&L Panel and the Leaseholders Association have both been briefed on 
the new political arrangements.  Whilst they have concerns over future 
channels of consultation they accept that the recent changes were mandatory 
and unavoidable.   Protocols are being adopted to ensure that papers 
circulated to the Social Services Select Committees are made available to 
Panel members at the same time and consultation and communication with 
our tenant and leaseholder representatives remains a priority of this Council. 
 

e. Finance Training 
 

Because of the complexities of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and the 
way by which it operates briefing sessions have been held with Finance 
Officers to explain the process. 
 

f. Site visits 
 

163



To give Tenant Panel members a wider vision and knowledge of the repair 
and maintenance of property in the Borough and to view the improvements 
being achieved regular site visits are carried out. This initiative will continue to 
be a feature of the consultative process. 
 

g. Repairs and Maintenance – Audit 
 

The new Bracknell Forest Services (BFS) is now established and all 
indications are that having maintenance and administrative services under 
one roof and in one place is leading too much greater efficiency.  The greater 
flexibility in terms of managing available resources is providing residents with 
a much-improved service.  A recent inspection by the Audit Inspector’s Office 
confirms this.  The final report is not yet available but it is known that the 
investigating team’s own survey found that a large percentage of our tenants 
were satisfied or above with the standard of service they were getting from 
BFS. 
 

h. Repairs and Maintenance 
 

It is no secret that the Council owns an ageing housing stock.   This creates 
financial pressures on the Housing Revenue Account since so many 
properties are requiring attention at the same time.  However, overall it is an 
established fact that the stock condition is satisfactory. 
 
Eventually the modernisation of kitchens and bathrooms and their 
replacement must be addressed as part of he decent homes initiative; 
meanwhile in partnership with our tenants and leaseholders repair and 
replacement of windows, roofs and porches is currently going ahead to an 
agreed programme. 
 

i. Rent Reform 
 

Concerns exist over the recent Government initiative to rationalise council 
rents with those of the private sector.  The T&L Panel have raised this matter 
with the Secretary of State by letter explaining their concerns that our tenants 
might be disadvantaged by changes in the present system.  It remains to be 
seen to what extent tenants are affected by any decisions the Government 
may eventually make. 
 

j. Stock Transfer 
 
This subject has been raised from time to time at T&L Panel meetings.  The 
Council has no plans to transfer its stock although the Government urges 
local authorities to regularly consider the issue.  In my opinion, most tenants 
would not be enthusiastic in having the housing stock transferred out of 
Council ownership as in the main they are happy with the service they now 
receive. 
 
 

k. Supporting people 
 

Various groups have been briefed on the Supporting People initiative that 
seeks to enable people with specialist needs to live as independently as 
possible, promoting individual well being through the provision of well 
planned, high quality, value for money support services.  Until specific 

164



proposals are known about how this will work some people are unclear about 
what exactly the intended changes might achieve in 2003.  Some elderly 
members of the SSRA were quite nervous, after being briefed, suspecting 
that in the end they would be paying more for less services.   Careful and 
sensitive briefing of those affected will be carried out before any new 
arrangements are introduced and the Council aims to achieve a seamless 
continuation of services whatever new procedures are finally adopted.  
 
 

4. CONCLUSION 
 
I encourage member’s to read the recently published Housing Strategy that has 
received unanimous cross party approval.  It fully explains this administration’s 
policies and strategy and provides a firm foundation for effective investment and 
planning in the future.  I have so far gained a reasonable knowledge about how our 
housing organisation works and through this accrued knowledge I am now able to 
work closely with the T&L Panel and our officers in an advisory capacity in aid of the 
decision making process.   
 
 
Councillor RC Edger OBE 
Tenants and Leaseholders Champion 
 
  

165



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 30 July 2002
	6 Executive Report
	7 Budget and Policy Framework
	Bracknell Forest YOT Team Business Plan Glossary

	8 Statement of Accounts 2001/02
	08A Statement of Accounts 01-02

	9 Appointments to Vacancies on Committees and External Organisation
	10 Annual Report of the Tenant's and Leaseholders' Champion

